SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
January 23, 2017
9:03 a.m

9:03:32 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Nat asha von | mhof

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Megan Wl lace, Attorney, Legislative Legal Services; David
Teal, Director, Legislative Finance D vision.

SUMVARY

APRESENTATI ON: | NTENT LANGUAGE REPORT

9:04: 43 AM

MEGAN  WALLACE, ATTORNEY, LEG SLATI VE LEGAL SERVI CES,
presented a |egal background to the intent |anguage. She
expl ained that nost intent |anguage was not enforceable.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for a restatenent.

Ms. Wallace replied that legislative intent needed to be
the mninmum necessary to explain the legislature' s intent
regardi ng how noney was to be spent. The intent could not
adm ni ster the program of expenditures. The intent nust not
enact law or amend existing law. The intent may not extend



beyond the |ife of the appropriation. The |anguage nust be
ger mane.

9:09: 02 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered what would occur with a bill
separate from the appropriation that had its own intent
| anguage voted on by the |egislature.

Ms. Wl |l ace responded that a request to put intent |anguage
into substantive form it woul d likely be t he
recommendation that it be drafted in order to be put into
law in the department. Therefore, it could be enacted in a
way that nmandated an agency or departnent.

Senator Mcciche surmsed that the intent |anguage could
not be on an omi bus bill.

Ms. Wallace replied that appropriation bills were exenpt
fromthe single subject rule. She stated that a substantive
bill would be bound by the single subject rule.

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that there were attenpts at
responses to requests from the agencies and industries
af f ect ed.

9:12:17 AM

DAVI D TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEGQ SLATIVE FINANCE DI VI SION, shared
that he had a conplied the FY17 Legislative Intent Language
into a summary (copy on file). He furthered that the
Legislative Finance Division (LFD) had conpiled a neno
(copy on file). He outlined the <color coding of the
spreadsheet. He felt that there was probably too nuch
intent |anguage. He stressed that intent |anguage was not
enf or ceabl e.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon commented that there would be a bill
that directed where the reports would be delivered.

M. Teal felt that the intent should be a clear as
possible. He stressed that nuch of the intent could be
interpreted in various ways. He remarked that determ ning
conpliance was not an easy decision. He remarked that there
could be differing opinions.

9:17:15 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 01/23/17 9:03 A M



M. Teal looked at item 2 of the spreadsheet. He stated
that the intent |anguage was not followed. A viable
repl acenent was not found.

M. Teal noted that item 3 conplied with the |[|anguage,
al t hough a vi abl e repl acenent was not found.

M. Teal |ooked at item 4, and remarked that it did not
follow the language in the intent. He stressed, however,
t hat there was progress.

M. Teal addressed item 5 related to tourism nmarketing. He
remarked that in FY 17 funding for tourism marketing was
$1.5 mllion of UG-. The request in FY 18 was out of the
operating budget and put in the capital budget at $1.35
mllion of UG, plus vehicle rental taxes of $1.65 million

The UGF was reduced, but total GF was increased. The intent
did not outline whether there was an intended reduction of
state funds or UGF. He stressed that the industry plan
called for an $8 mllion assessnent on industry, and using
$10.5 million of vehicle rental tax. He stressed that the
tax was used by other agencies for other purposes nostly
related to tourismdevel opnment.

M. Teal addressed item 6, which was related to the
Marijuana Control Board. He stressed that the board did not
set fees to recover unrestricted general funds, because the
fees were set before the intent | anguage was adopt ed.

M. Teal looked at item 15. He stated that the intent was
to find other sources of noney to fund the Munt Edgecunbe
H gh  School Aquatics Facility. He shared that the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED) had
identified sone non-GF sources, but still requested an FY18
i ncrement of $100.0 UG- to open/operate the facility.

9:22:11 AM

M. Teal addressed item 17. He shared that the |egislature
asked DEED to turn to Al aska Housing Finance Corporation
(AHFC) for energy efficiency loans. He stated that DEED
felt that the |loan option would not neet the needs of nany
appl i cants.

Senator von | nhof wondered whet her the Munt Edgecunbe pool
was currently not in operation.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 01/23/17 9:03 A M



M. Teal responded that he believed the pool was conplete,
but not in operation. They would maintain the enpty pool
because they had no funds to operate it.

Senator von Inmhof wondered whether there was another poo
in Sitka that could be used.

M. Teal replied in the affirmative.
Senator von | mhof wondered whether that pool was in use.
M. Teal responded in the affirmative.

Senator Mcciche wondered how the intent |anguage was
communicated to the departnents. He asked how the
departnments prioritized the legislative intent.

M. Teal responded that the intent |anguage was in one of
the appropriation bills, and was comunicated in that
matter to the departnents. He stated that they were
addressed in the fall regarding conpliance. He shared that
intent |anguage was unenforceable, but the departnents

still intended to follow the intent |anguage. He stressed
that intent |anguage was particularly inportant during a
| egi sl ature, rat her than an election year when a

subconmittee chair may be different. He stressed that there
are many reasons for not conplying with intent |[|anguage,
such as | ack of funding.

9: 25: 39 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered how to enact change.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon understand that the solution would be
made together because of conversations. She stressed that
the legislature could not halt the building of the sw mm ng
pool. She explained that there was a difference between
operating expenditures and capital expenditures.

Senator M cciche understood that the source of the intent
| anguage was approved by the |l egislature and the governor.

9:33:10 AM

Senator Dunleavy felt that the report indicated sone |ack
of execution of the intent of the legislature. He stressed

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 01/23/17 9:03 A M



that there had to be a determ nation of the best use of
tine.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared an exanple of the reappropriation
process.

Senator von I nmhof hoped to exami ne the individual projects
wi thin prograns.

9:40:11 AM

Co-Chair MacKinnon shared that conversations had taken
pl ace regarding the M. Edgecunbe pool.

Senator A son renmarked that the intent of the pool in Sitka
was to address the l|arge nunmber of drownings in rural
Al aska.

M. Teal responded that the |anguage should be the m ni num
necessary to explain the intent of the appropriation. The
i ntent should not adm ni ster the program

Senator O son wondered whether it was a waste of tine to
di scuss intent |anguage.

M. Teal felt that less intent may be nore effective than
nore intent.

9:45: 26 AM

Vi ce-Chair Bishop remarked that 44 of 88 of the topics had
followed the intent of the legislature. He asserted that
the adm ni stration nust approve of those topics.

M. Teal replied that nost of the agencies conplied with
nost of the intent, because they followed what was already
common practice. He stated that there were very good
reasons why there was not conpliance with intent |anguage.

Senator M cciche suggested that there may be a guidance
docunent from LFD and Legi sl ative Legal for t he
subconm ttee chairs, when drafting their requests.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon shared that the reason for t he

di scussion was in order for the Senate to prioritize their
budget .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 01/23/17 9:03 A M



9:50:10 AM

M. Teal |ooked at item 22, which showed that due to FY17
budget reductions, two projects addressing Upper Cook Inlet
stocks of concern (the Judd Lake Wir and Yentna River Fish
Wheel ) were del et ed.

M. Teal addressed item 25. He renmarked that there was an
attenpt to get the information to the public.

M. Teal highlighted itens 30 and 31. The intent asked
Departnment of Fish and Gane (DFG to examine how they
survey fishernen. He stated that DFG responded that
altering their survey techniques would be too costly, and
the quality and quantity of data may suffer wth those
changes. He stated that it was white on the spreadsheet,
because they were only required to evaluate, but chose not
to adjust their practice.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the item nunbers.
M. Teal replied that he was discussing itens 30 and 31.

M. Teal |ooked at item 33, which showed that the intent of
the legislature that the duties perfornmed by the deleted
Information Oficers are absorbed within the Ofice of the
Governor, in which the office did not conply.

M. Teal |ooked at item 38, which referred to attenpts to
privatize certain services. He stated that each agency had
its own report and ability to discuss their progress.

M. Teal addressed item 39, which related to collocation of
sever al state corporations including Alaska Aerospace
Corporation (AAC), Alaska Energy Authority (AEA), Al aska
Housi ng Finance Corporation (AHFC), and Al aska Industri al
Devel opnent and Export Aut hority (Al DEA) to reduce
adm nistrative costs and duplication of services wthin
t hose agencies. He stated that Departnment of Adm nistration
(DOA) was coordinating a plan to collocate the AEA, AlDEA
and AHFC. The review did not include AAC

M. Teal |ooked at item 40 discussed the transferring of

investnment responsibility of the CBR out of the Treasury to
t he Permanent Fund, and that intent was not foll owed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 01/23/17 9:03 A M



M. Teal |ooked at item 44, which related to construction
of roundabouts at Chena Hot Springs. The intent |anguage
asked that there not be any general fund noney used. He
stressed that nost transportation was funded with match
funding, so it was unknown whether the intent |anguage was
followed. He shared that the plan would use 100 percent
f ederal noney.

9:55:12 AM

M. Teal looked at itens 47 and 48, and both discussed
repurposing the youth facilities. He stated that each
facility was cl osed, instead of repurposed.

M. Teal addressed itens 50 and 51, which stated that the
i nvestnment would be too great. The departnent reported that
it would require an investnment in other resources.

M. Teal highlighted item 62, which related to hol ding down
the indirect costs for Village Public Safety Oficers
(VPSO. He stated that it nay appear that there was an
intent to hold the indirect cost rate at under 30 percent.
The |anguage was intended to work the opposite way, by
allowing sone contractors to have indirect rates nuch
hi gher than 30 percent.

M. Teal looked at items 67, which required savings at
rural airports. The intent was considered, however the
proposed FY18 budget does not include any reductions.

M. Teal highlighted item 68, which directed Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) to open and
staff three maintenance stations, but the funding was
vetoed, so they did not conply.

M. Teal addressed item 69, which addressed cost of living
differentials for maritine union enployees. It was found
that the intent could not be met wthout a statutory
change.

M. Teal |ooked at itens 74 through 81, which required the
university to exam ne their own organization

M. Teal addressed item 82, which he felt was a clear
nonconpl i ance by the university. The personal services were
supposed to be reduced, but they were unable to reduce
personal services because of bargai ning agreenents.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 01/23/17 9:03 A M



9:58:49 AM

Co-Chair Hoffman felt that the focus should not be strictly
on the operating budget. He did not want to focus too hard
on the legislative intent. He hoped to give direction to
subconmttees to mnimze any legislative intent, and to
conpl ete the budgetary process. He remarked that the senate
had proposed to reduce the budget by $300 mllion, and sone
felt that the reduction was too drastic. He reiterated that
there was a $3 billion budget deficit. He stressed that the
time should be spent on addressing the fiscal dilenm,
whi ch the governor classified as a "crisis.”

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the percentage of the budget in
formul a prograns.

M. Teal replied that 50 percent of the budget was formula
progr amns.

10: 04: 00 AM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered if there would be $3 billion
for the budget, with 50 percent renobved.

M. Teal replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon shared that the progranms needed to be
ref orned, because there was a $3 billion shortfall.

Co-Chair Hoffman stressed that the tinmefrane was |imted.

Co- Chair MacKinnon was grateful for the admnistration's
attendance to the comm ttee neetings.

10: 07: 02 AM
AT EASE

10: 07: 10 AM
RECONVENED

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon di scussed the follow ng day's agenda.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
10: 07: 49 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 01/23/17 9:03 A M



The neeting was adjourned at 10:07 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 01/23/17 9:03 A M



